
 

 
 
 

Chester Metropolitan District 
Regular Commission Meeting 

July 14, 2020 
 

The Chester Metropolitan District’s Regular Commission meeting was held at 6:00 pm on Tuesday, July 
14, 2020 by tele-conference. Members attending were George Wilmore, Vice Chairman; Jean Nichols, 
Secretary; Danielle Hughes; James Simpson; Raymond Douglas; and Donald Camp. Others in attendance 
were Fred Castles, Executive Director; Kelli Johnson, Executive Assistant; Andy Litten, District Engineer; 
Arthur Gaston, Attorney; Becky Moon, Finance Manager; Everett Stubbs, Attorney; and Richard Zhao, 
Senior Accountant.  
 
Vice Chairman Wilmore called the meeting to order at 6:02pm.  
 
 
 
 

Minutes: 
 
Vice Chairman Wilmore asked for corrections or additions to the minutes. Motion to approve the minutes 
of the June meeting was made by Donald Camp, seconded by Raymond Douglas, and unanimously 
approved. 
 

Special Call Minutes: 
 

Vice Chairman Wilmore asked for corrections or additions to the Special Call minutes. Motion to 
approve the minutes of the Special Call meeting on June 29, 2020 was made by Jean Nichols, seconded 
by Donald Camp, and unanimously approved.  
 
 

 
Public Comment: 

 
There were no members of the public attending the call.  
 
 

 
 
 

Old Business 
 

Filter Plant Report: Mr. Castles read the Filter Plant Report for July. A copy of the report is attached to 
the minutes. 

 
Engineering Report and DMAG: Mr. Litten read the Engineering and DMAG Report for July. A copy 

of the report is attached to the minutes. 



Vice Chairman Wilmore asked for more clarification on the Knights Bridge? 
 
Mr. Litten stated that Knights Bridge is the subdivision in Richburg beside Victoria Hills. He stated that 
they have paid their capital recovery fees and received their DHEC permit to construct water and sewer 
lines. He stated that he rode to the site, and they have not started the project at this time.  He stated the 
other project at Walker’s Mill in Lando seems to be wrapping up construction and he believes that project 
is close to being cancelled.  
 
Vice Chairman Wilmore asked what lost assets were under GIS? 
 
Mr. Litten stated that lost assets were lines, water mains, and valves that are on old maps dating back to 
the 1890’s that are not on the paper maps. He stated that in the history of CMD there has been a problem 
locating all the valves. He stated that his department is going through maps and paperwork to locate these 
valves. He stated that two were found this week, and had not been seen since the 70’s.  
 
Vice Chairman Wilmore asked what happened with the Lawn Care RFP? 
 
Mr. Litten stated that we received one bid on the Lawn Care, and the bid was $2800 a month, and we 
currently pay $690 a month.  
 
Vice Chairman Wilmore asked if CMD was going to open the bid again? 
 
Mr. Litten stated that formally CMD had talked about staying with the current company for the current 
monthly price. He stated that the decision has not been finalized.  
 
Mr. Wilmore asked if the current company was doing the same specs as the RFQ? 
 
Mr. Litten stated that yes, they are currently doing the same specs as in the RFQ.  
 
Mr. Gaston asked if there was a written description of the job details for the lawn care bid? 
 
Mr. Litten stated that yes it was included in the RFP and on CMD website.  
 
Mr. Castles stated that the RFP was placed on the website, advertised in South Carolina Business 
Opportunities (SCiBO) and CMD reached out to local companies. He stated that this is also how we came 
up with our invitation, and that it was also put on the state website for bids. 
 
Mr. Wilmore stated that if we are getting bids from companies who are not local, then the quote would be 
higher. 
 
Kelli Johnson stated that she personally reached out to 7 lawn care companies who are local, to let them 
know that the RFQ was on our website.  
 
 
 
 
 

 



New Business 
 

P-Cards 
 
Mrs. Moon stated that several months ago CMD received a presentation from Bank of America on P 
Cards which is approve by the State. She stated that CMD is proposing to use P Cards for the District. 
She stated that the main reasons CMD wanted to investigate using P Cards is because we currently have 
different credit cards and debit cards. She stated that some local businesses allow the employees to sign 
a credit slip, and CMD then receives a monthly bill. She stated that with the P Cards this allows CMD to 
monitor who uses the cards, and what items where purchased. She stated that this will also help with 
fraud, because CMD would be able to track each purchase, and each employee that makes a purchase. 
She stated that in the Board meeting packet, she has provided key benefits. She stated that when we send 
employees to conferences and training our employees would be able to use the P Cards instead of using 
their personal money. She stated that not all employees are able to pay for these trips with their personal 
money and wait for re-imbursement. She stated that CMD would like for the Board to review this 
information and would like for the commissioners to vote on this is August.  

Mr. Simpson asked if there was an annual fee to Bank of America? 

Mrs. Moon stated that there is not a fee. She stated that with the P Cards we could get a rebate back, 
depending on our annual spending.  

Mr. Wilmore stated that he uses P Cards at his current job, and they can go out and purchase the items 
they need.  

Hunting Lease 

 

Mr. Castles stated that he had been approached by several employees about the 43 acres of land that was 
purchased at the Filter Plant that has not been developed yet. He stated that employees have asked about 
possibly hunting on that land using only bow and arrows. He stated that he spoke to David Sloan who is 
Filter Plant Superintendent, and he said he had no issue as long as it was employees only and that they 
do not aim the bow and arrows at the filter plant. Mr. Castles stated that he spoke to Everett Stubbs who 
is also a hunter and our legal counsel. His advice was to be sure to have a contract lease agreement with 
the CMD employees who would like to be in the hunt club, and they will have to carry liability 
insurance. He stated the he brought that information back to the employees, and they agreed with the 
information from Mr. Stubbs. He stated that he would like to know if the board would like for CMD to 
move forward or not.  

Mr. Wilmore stated that he felt Mr. Gaston should be involved.  

Mr. Gaston stated that Everett Stubbs was part of legal council and he is also a hunter. He stated he 
agreed that there would need to be a contract.  

Mr. Simpson stated he did not have an issue with the employees hunting if it is legal. He stated that he 
feels that the employees might bring their son or father, but if those names are on the contract there 
should be no issue. 



Mr. Castles stated that was a very good point. 

Mr. Gaston stated that either Everett Stubbs or himself could meet with the employees who are 
interested in the hunting club. 

Mr. Wilmore asked once all the details are worked out, will Mr. Castles bring it back to the Board? 

Mr. Castles asked if the commissioners agree to CMD moving forward with working on an agreement 
with the employees, and once the agreement has been completed, the agreement will be brought back to 
the board.   

Mr. Simpson stated that it would be best to only have a contract on a yearly basis. 

Mr. Gaston stated that all hunting leases are on a yearly basis. 

Mr. Castles stated that he will continue to investigate this, and once there is a plan he will bring back to 
the board for approval.  

Mass Mutual  

Mr. Castles stated that Mass Mutual came up during the approval of the 2020-2021 Budget. He stated 
that he was in charge of finding out the information on the Mass Mutual policy for Mr. Mike Medlin, the 
former Executive Director. He stated that back in 1999, the Chester Metropolitan District Commission 
and Mr. Medlin agreed that the District would fund a deferred compensation retirement plan that he 
could take with him at the time of retirement. The District also agreed to have a life insurance policy for 
his wife if he died before she did. Mr. Medlin has retired, and he has assumed his funds that have been 
put in his deferred retirement plan. Since his retirement in 2015 CMD has continued to pay the whole 
life insurance policies, there are three or four policies that make up this investment. What the investment 
intent was that the whole life policies would pay back the district, the full amount of all the money put 
into the deferred policy and reimburse the District for all premiums paid in. When Mr. Medlin is 
deceased, the District will be reimbursed every penny spent on the retirement plan and all premiums. For 
the remainder of this year ending December 31, 2020 the remaining balance on that account is $4182, in 
year 2021 the fees for that account are $6373. We will no longer pay any fees to Mass Mutual after 
2021, the annual premiums will be paid out of the dividends from the retirement plan. If we were to cash 
out today, the cash out value would be $260,000, but if we wait until Mr. Medlin dies, we stand to 
recover $600,000. Mrs. Moon, Mr. Gaston, and I sat down with Mass Mutual to figure out a plan go 
forward from here. We stand to recover $300,000 to $400,000 more if we just continue as is.  

Mr. Gaston stated that it is not that we will make this money, but will get the money back that was paid 
in. He stated that it could be a breach of contract if we were to cash out. He stated that it is a win win 
situation for the District to continue to pay the premiums through 2021.  

Mr. Castles stated that if we were to cash out today, we would lose $300,000 to $400,000.  

Mr. Gaston stated that the district does not want to get into a breach of contract. He stated that in the end 
it will not cost CMD any money. 

Mr. Wilmore asked how old is Mr. Medlin? 



Mr. Castles stated that Mr. Medlin is 70 years old. 

Mr. Wilmore asked if Mr. Medlin was to commit suicide would CMD still get paid? 

Mr. Gaston stated that he is unsure, but most plans from 20 years ago do not have the suicide clause. He 
stated that he could find out that information.  

Mr. Gaston stated his recommendation to the board is to continue paying the premiums.  

All commissioners agreed to continue to pay the premiums and not to cash out. 

Scott & Company Engagement Letter 

Mr. Castles stated that Scott & Company is the audit company that CMD uses each year to preform our 
annual audit. This is the agreement that we will abide by this year, and how CMD will pay them. He 
stated that the company provides the same services every year. He stated that the payment for 2020 audit 
will be $20,000. Mr. Gaston did request some additions related to arbitrations. He stated that he wanted 
to recommend to the commissioners to accept the engagement letter from Scott & Company. 

Mr. Gaston stated that Scott & Company can add reimbursable expenses. The base fee is $20,000.  

Mr. Wilmore asked if Mr. Gaston from legal standpoint he agreed with the language in the engagement 
letter? 

Mr. Gaston stated that he agreed with the language. 

Vice Chairman Wilmore asked if there was a motion to accept the agreement with Scott & Company to 
do our annual audit.  Motion to accept the Scott & Company Engagement Letter to do our annual audit 
was made by Donald Camp, seconded by Jean Nichols, and unanimously approved.  
 
Mr. Castles stated that he will deliver the Scott & Company Engagement Letter to Mr. Wilmore to sign. 
 

Filter Plant Upgrades Hazen & Sawyer 
 

Mr. Castles stated that the commission is aware that CMD has been working with Hazen & Sawyer to 
put together a scope of services and fee estimate to make renovations at our water plant and to make 
improvements to our water plant to increase our water compacity. He stated that CMD had a request for 
qualifications and had qualifications from 8 different engineering firms. He stated that CMD had a 
committee that reviewed the qualifications and chose Hazen & Sawyer. CMD has had several meetings 
to make this a more manageable project. He stated that Mr. Gaston and himself have been working 
together on the contract. Mr. Gaston is in approval of the language and the consultant is in approval of 
the language of the contract. The scope of work is also attached to the contract. He stated that in the 
special call meeting, capital projects were brought up and these projects were in the budget, but do not 
impact water rates. He stated that money has been appropriated for this project. The cost of this project 
is $475,566. This is for the preliminary design for about five phases that will take place over the next 
several years. CMD recommends to the board to approve to engage Hazen & Sawyer to for engineering 
services for this preliminary design project.  
 



Mr. Gaston stated that this was a 24-page document, and legally it was in good form, but the members of 
the commission might want to read through it.  

Mr. Wilmore asked if the commissioners could review all the information and put it on the agenda for 
August? 

Vice Chairman Wilmore asked if there was a motion to vote next month on the Hazen & Sawyer 
contract. Motion to vote on the Hazen & Sawyer contract in August was made by Donald Camp, and 
seconded by Danielle Hughes, and unanimously approved.   

 

 
Reports 

 
Mr. Castles stated the Kelli Johnson completed her Certified Administrative Professional Certificate and 
will take her exam in September. He stated that CMD could possibly recoup money through the SC 
Cares Act for COVID 19 purchases. He stated once more information is available, he will update the 
Board. He stated the iPads have been ordered, but at this time they are on backorder.  
 
 
 
Director Report: Mr. Castles read the Director Report for July. A copy of the report is attached to the 

minutes. 
 
 
Hydrant Report: Mr. Castles read the Hydrant Report for July. A copy of the report is attached to the 

minutes. 
 
 
 
Financial Report: Mrs. Moon read the Financial Report for July. A copy of the report is attached to the 

minutes. 
 
 
With there being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned. Motion to adjourn was made 
by Jean Nichols, seconded by James Simpson, and unanimously approved. 
The meeting adjourned at 7:10pm. 
 
 
 Approved:      Respectfully Submitted: 
 
 Date: August 11, 2020              By: Kelli Johnson 
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